Earth Negotiations Bulletin GG

| =

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations
Online at http://www.iisd.ca/biodiv/itpgrgb3/

Vol. 9 No. 468 Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD) Wednesday, 3 June 2009

ITPGR GB 3 HIGHLIGHTS: requirements, and stated that the ERG was prepared to discuss
TUESDAY, 2 JUNE 2009 the establishment of an intersessional committee on the .funding
) ) ) strategy. CANADA and ECUADOR supported the continued
Delegates to the third session of the Governing Body (GB 3)  work, on a temporary basis, of the advisory committee on the
of the International Treaty on Plant Genetic Resources for Food funding strategy.
and Agriculture (the Treaty or ITPGR) met in plenary to address The ERG. the SOUTHWEST PACIFIC. SWITZERLAND
implementation of the funding strategy. Following a long break .4 INDIA supported establishment of a contact group, and
for consultations and a meeting of a Friends of the Chair group SWITZERLAND proposed that the advisory committee
on establ%shment of contact groups on the f}mding strategy z}nd/ Co-Chairs also chair the contact group. Supported by the
or compl.lance, a contact group on the funding strategy met in SOUTHWEST PACIFIC and the ERG, SWITZERLAND urged
the evening. delegates to also set up a contact group on compliance, since

PLENARY establishing a compliance mechanism together with a funding
FUNDING STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION: Bert strategy would demonstrate to donors parties’ commitment to
Visser (the Netherlands), Co-Chair of the ad hoc advisory Treaty implementation. Delegates then held a lengthy discussion

committee on the funding strategy, presented the Co-Chairs’ on whether contact groups should be established, with many
report (IT/GB-3/09/7 and App. 2), consisting of a strategic pointing to difficulties for small delegations. The MIDDLE
plan for implementation of the benefit-sharing fund, an EAST said there should not be three contact groups at the same
elaborated Annex 4 of the funding strategy on information and time, and called for prioritization.

reporting requirements, and a draft decision. He remarked that At the request of CAMEROON and CANADA, the

a strategic plan was necessary to raise voluntary contributions Secretariat presented draft terms of reference (TORs) for the

to the benefit-sharing fund until mandatory payments to the proposed contact group on the funding strategy, stating that
multilateral system (MLS) under the standard material transfer the group would: be regionally representative and open-ended;
agreement materialize. He suggested focusing discussions on work on the basis of the documents tabled for this item; discuss
the major policy elements of the plan, namely: the financial policy elements of the strategic plan and additional innovative

objective of US$116 million over five years; having parties as funding mechanisms; and present proposals for a draft decision
major donors; establishing a committee on the funding strategy ~ to plenary. CANADA and SWITZERLAND suggested
to guide implementation of the strategic plan; selecting goodwill ~discussing only the policy elements in the advisory committee

ambassadors; and resource allocation. Co-Chairs’ report and the Secretariat report (IT/GB-3/09/7
Brazil, for GRULAC, stressed the need to prioritize and 8), and drafting a decision for plenary’s consideration.
the benefit-sharing pillar of the Treaty and expressed GRULAC suggested welcoming the draft strategic plan as it
disappointment at the slow pace of resource mobilization stands, and restricting discussions to the draft decision, with
and implementation of the funding strategy. He welcomed the MIDDLE EAST also calling for discussion on the annex on
the draft strategic plan, and urged adoption of the US$116 information and reporting requirements.
million objective. Iran, for the MIDDLE EAST, stressed that ANGOLA and CAMEROON proposed that the contact group
lack of resources hampers implementation, and said that the consider only the draft decision including elements on: resource
funding strategy must be transparent and based on concrete and ~ allocation; strategic plan commitments for the implementation
predictable pledges. He supported approaching all economic of the benefit-sharing fund; and the need for goodwill
sectors when fundraising. Australia, for the SOUTHWEST ambassadors. The ERG expressed willingness to discuss the
PACIFIC, supported the draft strategic plan. SWITZERLAND draft decision. SWITZERLAND added that he will not accept
said the strategic plan focused on fundraising and should also establishment of a contact group on the funding strategy unless
include alternative ways for securing contributions to the a contact group on compliance is also established. BRAZIL,
benefit-sharing fund. supported by IRAN, opposed making the creation of one
Belgium, for the EUROPEAN REGIONAL GROUP (ERG), contact group contingent on the establishment of another, noting
recalled financial contributions made by ERG members. that compliance is entirely dependent on the adequate funding
She welcomed the annex on information and reporting of the Treaty, which should be discussed first.

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@jiisd.org> is written and edited by Claudio Chiarolla, Marie-Annick Moreau, Nicole Schabus, and Elsa Tsioumani.
The Digital Editor is Francis Dejon. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org>. The Director of IISD Reporting Services is Langston James “Kimo” Goree VI
<kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the United Kingdom (through the Department for International Development — DFID), the Government of the
United States of America (through the Department of State Bureau of Oceans and International Environmental and Scientific Affairs), the Government of Canada (through
CIDA), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the German Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ), the German Federal Ministry for the
Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety (BMU), the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the European Commission (DG-ENV), and the Italian Ministry
for the Environment, Land and Sea. General Support for the Bulletin during 2009 is provided by the Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Australia,
the Austrian Federal Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management, the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the New Zealand Ministry of Foreign
Affairs and Trade, SWAN International, Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN), the Finnish Ministry for Foreign Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of Environment
(through the Institute for Global Environmental Strategies - IGES), the Japanese Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (through the Global Industrial and Social Progress
Research Institute - GISPRI), the Government of Iceland, and the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP). The opinions expressed in the Bulletin are those of the
authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD or other donors. Excerpts from the Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate academic
citation. For information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide reporting services, contact the Director of IISD Reporting Services at <kimo@iisd.org>, +1-646-536-
7556 or 300 East 56th St., 11A, New York, New York 10022, United States of America. The ENB Team at the Third session of the Governing Body of the ITPGR can be
contacted by e-mail at <elsa@iisd.org>.




Wednesday, 3 June 2009

Vol. 9 No. 468 Page 2

Chair Modesto Fernandez (Cuba) noted that there was
agreement “in principle” on the establishment of a contact group
on the funding strategy and suspended discussions on its TORs
until the afternoon plenary.

VIA CAMPESINA reminded delegates that industry continues
to profit through research and seeds accessed through the MLS,
while farmers are still waiting to see any benefits. He said that
funds should go not only to ex situ collections and universities,
but also to farmers and participatory structures. He concluded
that if the Treaty cannot help farmers get the benefits owed to
them, the MLS should not continue.

In the afternoon, discussion continued on the TORs for the
contact group on the funding strategy. Ecuador, for the G-77/
CHINA, supported focus on the draft decisions. The ERG,
supported by the SOUTHWEST PACIFIC, agreed with the
focus on the draft decisions, but reiterated the need to establish a
contact group on compliance during the week, to continue work
on the draft compliance procedures (IT/GB-3/09/6 Rev.1). The
G-77/CHINA stressed the need to concentrate on the contact
group on the funding strategy first, noting that this item needs to
be finished before moving onto the following one, and YEMEN
opposed the establishment of two parallel contact groups. Chair
Fernandez underscored the seriousness of the situation and the
need for political will in order to guarantee funding and avoid a
“disastrous situation.” Asking delegates to reconsider their stance
and hold informal consultations, he called for a 30 minutes
break. Following the break, a Friends of the Chair group was
established, consisting of one representative per region, which
convened immediately.

In the early evening, Chair Fernandez reported on the
outcome of the consultations, presenting a short compromise
text indicating parties’ agreement to make their “best efforts”
to put priority on the funding strategy in the evening, as a
good basis for setting up the contact group on compliance to
commence work the following day and for the contact group on
the funding strategy to continue its work. BRAZIL, supported
by the G-77/CHINA and IRAN, made clear that this text did
not imply automatic agreement to establishing a contact group
on compliance. Delegates agreed that Ana Berreta (Uruguay)
and Bert Visser (the Netherlands), Co-Chairs of the advisory
committee on the funding strategy, would co-chair the contact
group on the funding strategy, consisting of two speakers per
region, with the mandate of reviewing the draft decisions
contained in the advisory committee Co-Chairs’ report and the
Secretariat report.

CONTACT GROUP ON THE FUNDING STRATEGY

In the late evening, the contact group on the funding strategy
convened. They agreed to a draft decision for the adoption of
Annex 4 of the funding strategy regarding information and
reporting requirements without amendments. Regarding a draft
decision for the adoption of the strategic plan for implementation
of the benefit-sharing fund, GRULAC tabled alternative text and
proposed it be used as the basis for negotiations. Eventually, the
contact group agreed to work on the basis of the draft decision
included in the report of the advisory committee Co-Chairs (IT/
GB-3/09/7).

Regarding preambular text, GRULAC suggested adding a
reference to Article 18.3 of the Treaty, which provides that the
Governing Body shall periodically establish targets for funding.
The ERG suggested specifically referring to funding for priority
activities, plans and programmes, but agreed to refer to Article
18.3 and also to include a reference to Article 18.4(f) (voluntary
contributions), as suggested by NORTH AMERICA.

SWITZERLAND and NORWAY tabled a proposal for
operative text, inviting parties to explore, with relevant
stakeholders, the development of innovative mechanisms to
allow for the provision of resources to the benefit-sharing fund
on a regular and predictable basis. The text further refers to the
Norwegian example of providing 0.1% of the annual value of
seed sold in its territory to the fund. Discussions continued into
the night.

IN THE CORRIDORS

The second day saw growing frustration among participants,
with the afternoon plenary grinding to a halt after less than 30
minutes and not resuming until after 7:00 pm. The time was
spent in a Friends of the Chair group in an attempt to untie
the Gordian knot consisting of intertwined strands of financial
rules, funding strategy and compliance. This was manifest in
disagreement on whether to set up contact groups on these
issues. Previous sessions of the Governing Body had found
themselves at a similar impasse, where pulling on the various
strands only served to tighten the knot, and the best solution
became to defer consideration of compliance. This time
participants acknowledged that “things are serious,” wondering
“if we take so long to agree on process, what will happen when
we touch substance?”

It almost looked as if the Friends of the Chair group had
reached consensus, when the momentum was again disrupted by
a developed country regional group requesting time for internal
consultations. One participant stressed that developed countries
needed to coordinate and “get their priorities straight” before
negotiations could actually begin. Delegates finally agreed
to launch into a contact group on the funding strategy late in
the evening and to set up a contact group on compliance on
Wednesday, although developing countries made it clear that its
establishment would depend on progress being made on funding
issues during the night.

This move reflected the earlier emerging consensus that
unless there was a clear funding strategy and long-term funding
commitments in place, the Treaty would be in jeopardy.
Controversy over establishing the contact group on the funding
strategy only arose when some tried to make its creation
contingent upon the establishment of another one on compliance,
their argument being that key elements of the funding strategy
had already been put in place, while compliance has been
postponed already twice. Others countered that compliance
cannot be discussed unless funds are secured, and pointed to
the continuing funding deficit of the Treaty. Some delegates
explained that from a developing country perspective a
compliance mechanism is mainly perceived as a mechanism to
secure increased access, while funding commitments remain
voluntary and slow to materialize. One delegate also pointed
out that the Treaty itself spells out that implementation of
commitments in developing countries will depend on effective
allocation of funds by developed countries. A bold stroke, or
a substantive influx of funding, might be required to cut the
Gordian knot of competing interests in compliance and funding.

The current lack of funding seems to not only hamper
negotiations and implementation of the Treaty’s core tasks, but
also to prevent the benefit-sharing fund from coming to full
fruition. A number of farmer organizations and other NGOs
stressed that monies should flow directly to communities rather
than to academic and public institutions as has occurred in the
first set of project approvals, leaving some to wonder whether
benefits would trickle down to the ground.




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


